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JWT and Associates, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
1111 East Herndon, Suite 211, Fresno, CA  93720 

Voice: (559) 431-7708   Fax: (559) 431-7685 
 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Stockton East Water District 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Stockton East Water 
District (the District), as of and for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
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Basis for Qualified Opinion 
 
As more fully described in Note 1 to the financial statements, District management has not evaluated water 
assessments receivable from the City of Stockton included in other assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 for 
doubtful accounts.  In our opinion, accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
require that an allowance for doubtful accounts be provided based on historical experience and management’s 
evaluation of outstanding receivables.  The effect of this departure from accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America on the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities has not 
been determined. 
 
Qualified Opinion 
 
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the 
financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities of Stockton East Water District, as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 
and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplemental Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.   
 
 
 

JWT & Associates, LLP 
Fresno, California 
September 14, 2021 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

March 31, 2021 
 
The following is a narrative overview and analysis by the management of Stockton East Water District (the 
District) of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021.  Readers should 
consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
•  Total assets of the District were $162,202,976 with capital assets (Utility Plant in Service) at 

$84,111,491, net of accumulated depreciation.  Current and other assets were $39,788,974 and 
$28,215,428, respectively. 

 
•  Total liabilities were $85,382,349 consisting of long-term liabilities of $45,568,459 and current 

liabilities of $39,813,890. 
 
•  Assets of the District exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $76,066,464 (net 

position).  Of this amount, $22,802,396 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the District’s 
ongoing obligations and $45,590,492 represents the District’s net investment in capital assets. 

 
•  The District’s net assets increased by $10,709,749 from $65,356,715 in FYE 2020 to $76,066,464 in 

FYE 2021.   
 
•  Total operating revenues for the fiscal year 2020-2021 were $29,302,061, which is an increase of 12.1% 

from the prior year or $3,153,885.  Surface and groundwater sales and assessments were largely 
unchanged from the previous fiscal year.  The bulk of the increase came from municipal and industrial 
water charges.  Base Monthly Payments from the District’s Urban Contractors increased by $1,528,217 
while rate of equalization charges to other municipal and industrial customers increased by 1,452,094.  
The remaining significant increase was a result of increased sources of supply revenue in the form of 
reimbursement for New Hogan Dam O&M expenses due to the Stockton East Water District from 
Calaveras County Water District (CCWD).  The increase was in the amount of $172,904.    

 
•  Total operating expenses for the fiscal year 2020-2021 were $22,342,896.  This figure shows an 

increase of 19.9% from the prior fiscal year figure of $18,636,881.  Several factors contributed to the 
significant increase of operating expenses.     

 
Sources of supply expenses saw an increase in expense of $1,912,053.  The increase had two major 
components. First, the District’s contract with the United States Army Corps of Engineers in relation 
to Stockton East’s water supply from New Hogan Dam calls for a five-year billing cycle which takes 
into account O&M for the preceding five years.  The cycle began anew with the invoice for the fiscal 
year ending on March 31, 2021 which was $415,689 than the previous year’s invoice.  Second, the 
District converted its United States Bureau of Reclamation Contract for water from New Melones Dam 
from a water service to a repayment contract which necessitated payment of the District’s construction 
obligations for a total $1,595,236.  This makes up the rest of the increase in sources of supply slightly 
offset by decreased water use from New Melones and a generally flat year-over- year cost per acre-foot 
cost.   
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

March 31, 2021 
 
Transmission and distribution costs increased slightly by $547,632 due to increased activity in canal 
and distribution system maintenance.   
 
Water treatment costs rose moderately by $1,383,500. Part of the increase is a result of increase in 
salaries and benefits of $641,651 which is expected given general merit increases and MOU dictated 
cost-of-living increases as well as medical and other premium increases.  Additionally, an increase of 
$520,080 in filter media expenses made up the majority of the remaining increase; the rest came from 
general maintenance, instrumentation and controls and other treatment plant related cost increases.   
 
Administrative expenses rose slightly by $107,859 with no significant fluctuations from the previous 
fiscal year and depreciation was largely unchanged with an increase of $8,323.  Amortization expenses 
related to Certificates of Participation were eliminated this year after netting $253,352 last year when 
the Certificates were refunded. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial 
statements.  The District is an independent special District formed by the California Legislature and follows 
enterprise fund reporting.  There are three main divisions to the District’s operations:  1) the Municipal and 
Industrial (M&I) Division is primarily funded by base monthly payments from the Urban Contractors and 
ground water rate equalization charges from other municipal and industrial customers; 2) the Agricultural 
(Ag) Division derives its revenues from fees and assessments charged to agricultural irrigators within 
District boundaries; and 3) the Administration Division is non-revenue generating division that provides 
administrative support to the M&I and Ag divisions.  
 
Accordingly, the financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting.  The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three 
components:  1) Statement of Net Position; 2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position; and 3) Statement of Cash Flows.  This report also contains other supplemental information in 
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the current and long-term portions of assets and liabilities separately 
and may provide a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or 
deteriorating over time.  This statement includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities and provides 
information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the 
District’s creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the District 
and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.  
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing 
profitability and credit worthiness as well as how the District’s net position changed during the most recent 
fiscal year.  This statement shows revenues and expenses from operations, non-operating revenues and 
expenses, and capital contributions, and reconciles the change from one fiscal year to the next.  This 
statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past year and can be used to determine 
whether the District has successfully recovered all its costs through its user fees and other charges.   
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

March 31, 2021 

The Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using the direct method and is concerned solely with input and 
outlay of cash from operating activities, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing 
activities and investing activities.  This statement also includes a reconciliation of operating profit (loss) to 
cash from operating activities.  The primary purpose of this statement is to provide information about the 
District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the financial statements. 

Financial Analysis 

Net Position 
As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position.  As shown 
in Figure 1, the District’s assets exceeded liabilities by $76,066,464 on March 31, 2021, an increase of 
$10,709,749 from the District’s net assets at March 31, 2020. 

By far the largest portion of the District’s net assets reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, conveyance facilities, water treatment plant, pipelines and equipment), less related outstanding 
debt used to acquire those assets.  The District uses these assets to provide water services to its customers; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the District’s investment in 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt 
must be provided from services to customers or other sources, since capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Figure 1 
Net Position 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

March 31, 2021  

A portion of the District’s net position ($7,673,575) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used.  These net positions consist of funds dedicated to specific purposes, 
e.g., urban contractors’ directives, capital construction and dry year reserves.  The remaining balance of the
District’s net assets is unrestricted and may be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations and creditors.

Change in Net Position 
As shown in Figure 2, the District’s operating, non-operating activities and developer fees increased net 
assets by $10,709,749 as compared to a $9,932,878 increase in net assets in the prior year.  The District’s 
reduction in net position increase is due to the combined changes of the following major components: 

• The District’s FYE 2021 operating profit of $6,959,165 (that portion of the District’s operating
revenues in excess of its operating expenses) represents a decrease of $552,130 from FYE 2020’s
operating profit of $7,511,295.

• Non-operating expenses, net decreased $58,311 from ($52,187) in FYE 2020 to $6,124 in FYE 2021.

Figure 2 
Changes in Net Position 

Operating Revenues.  Operating revenues increased by 12.1% or $3,153,885. This is mainly due to increased 
Base Monthly Payments and groundwater rate of equalization assessments.  Base Monthly Payments are 
treated water payments mandated by the Second Amended Contract. The Second Amended Contract between 
the District and the Urban Contractors calls for the Urban Contractors to make payments to the District in the 
amounts necessary to cover the District’s cost of all municipal and industrial expenses.  Said costs include 
costs related to sources of supply, transmission and distribution, water treatment plant operation and  
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

March 31, 2021 

maintenance costs, debt payments on certificates of participation, an installment purchase agreement, state 
revolving fund loan used for construction of the treatment plant and transmission system, and a share of 
conveyance and storage facilities, in addition to ground water rate equalization charges paid by other 
municipal and industrial customers.  

Operating Expenses.  Operating expenses increased 19.9% or $3,706,015 due chiefly to decreases in 
sources of supply expenses of $1,912,054, water treatment expenses of $1,383,501, transmission and 
distribution expenses of $547,631, and general and administrative expenses of $107,859.  

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses). Total net non-operating revenues (expenses) for FYE 2021 increased 
$58,313 from ($52,188) in FYE 2020 to $6,124 in FYE 2021.  This increase is composed of an increase in 
grant reimbursements of $835,616, a decrease in interest expense of $373,263, an increase in property taxes 
of $12,010, a decrease in GASB 68 pension expense of $266,060 offset by decrease in interest and other 
income of $1,004,755, and a decrease in loss on sale of fixed assets of $2,160. 

Developer Fees.  During FYE 2021, the District received $3,744,457 in developer fees representing capital 
contributions compared to $2,473,771 in FYE 2020 for an increase of $1,270,686. 

Budget Comparisons 

The following table compares actual operating revenues and expenses to the 2020-2021 budget: 

Figure 3 

For FYE 2021, operating revenues were $344,406 lower than budgeted.  The difference is mainly due to a 
variance in Water Equalization Revenues of $553,449 presumably caused by conservation efforts in the 
area and a lower than expected transmission and distribution revenues due to a decrease in water wheeled 
to CSJWCD. These decreases were partially offset by larger than budgeted water assessments s of $191,324 
and increase in sources of supply charges to CCWD of $107,719. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

March 31, 2021  

 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets Activity 
 
The District’s net investment, after depreciation, in capital assets as of March 31, 2021 amounted to 
$84,111,491.  The District’s capital assets include all land, buildings, conveyance facilities, water treatment 
plant, pipelines and equipment owned by the District. The total decrease in the District’s investment in 
capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1.5% or $1,276,358.  This represents capital additions of 
$2,128,570 offset by $3,404,928 of depreciation. 
 
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found within the audited financial statements.  
 
Long Term Debt Activity 
 
On July 15, 2019 the District refunded previously issued Certificates of Participation with Pacific Western 
Bank as a taxable debt issuance via a note payable.  The refunding did not extend repayment terms but rather 
lowered the cumulative interest rate being paid over the same period.  Refunding is estimated to yield 
$3,757,786 in savings.  Principal indebtedness of the refunded debt on March 31, 2020 was $33,611,000.  The 
District paid down principal indebtedness according to the terms of the note during the fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2021 in the amount of $5,091,000.  Principal indebtedness as of March 31, 2021 is $28,520,000 
 
The District entered into a funding agreement with the State of California Department of Public Health 
during FYE 2013 to assist the District in financing the construction of a 10 million gallon finished water 
reservoir and repair of the District’s existing finished water reservoir.  The funding agreement consists of 
a $15,000,000 revolving loan, equal to the estimated total cost of construction and repairs.  The revolving 
loan carries no interest and is amortized over a 20-year term.  The loan is due to be retired in 2035. 
 
Total outstanding indebtedness as of March 31, 2021 of $8,308,773 related to the state revolving fund 
loan is included in the District’s financial statements. 
 
On July 15, 2014, the District entered into a $3,325,000 note payable with the Bank of Stockton to provide 
financing relative to the purchase of real property adjacent to the District’s treatment plant property, 
consisting of approximately 230 acres.  The term of the note was 5 years with an option to renew the note 
after the initial term.  On July 15 2019, the District renewed the note for an additional 5 years.  As of March 
31, 2020 total principal outstanding indebtedness of $2,417,977 is included in the District’s financial 
statements. 
 
Note 8 in the Notes to the Financial Statements contains schedules showing the debt transactions for notes 
and loans payable for the year, the status of the debt as of March 31, 2021, and schedules of future debt 
service requirements.  In addition, further detailed information regarding debt maturities is contained in the 
Other Supplemental Information subsection. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

March 31, 2021  
 
Future Financial Outlook 
 
The California Legislature imposed rate limitations for the District’s Agricultural Division when it provided 
the District with additional powers in 1979.  Therefore, by design, the District has limited ability to raise 
revenues in its Agricultural Division.  The Legislature can provide relief from this revenue limitation, but 
the District will likely need a formal justification report to make any request politically palatable.  The 
District has engaged legislators in the effort to pursue removing the limitation The Second Amended 
Contract between the District and its Urban Contractors establishes a base monthly payment by the Urban 
Contractors that, in addition to ground water rate equalization charges paid by other municipal and 
industrial customers, covers 100% of the cost of the Municipal Division-Treatment Plant. 
 
The District’s water treatment plant is currently rated by the California Department of Public Health 
(CDPH) to treat 65 million gallons of water per day (mgd).  On May 18, 2012, the District entered into an 
agreement to receive funding through the CDPH’s State Revolving Fund Loan Program in the amount of 
$15,000,000 for the construction of an additional 10 million gallon finished water reservoir.  The 10 million 
gallon finished water reservoir was completed in November 2013, and represents a step toward expanding 
future treatment plant capacity.  
 
The District’s Statement of Net Position includes water assessments receivable of $28,000,451 included in 
other assets, customer deposits of $29,801,147 related to contracted BMP payments as of March 31, 2021.  
These amounts reflect errors in BMP payments made by the Urban Contractors.  The District has informed 
the Urban Contractors that the current method of payment of the BMP conflicts with the terms of the Second 
Amended Contract, and Standard and Poor’s has downgraded the District’s bond rating as a direct result of 
the contractors’ failure to follow the terms of the Second Amended Contract. 
 
The City of Stockton constructed its Delta Water Supply Project (DWSP), which reduces the City of 
Stockton’s share of water received from the District.  As a result, the City of Stockton is of the opinion that 
its payments to the District will be reduced.  This position is not supported as payments under the Second 
Amended Contract are based upon total water use within the District’s service area and not water delivered 
from the treatment plant.  Payments from the Urban Contractors continue to be in error and the District has 
demanded that payments be made in a timely manner in accordance with the Second Amended Contract.  
In 2017 the District filed a lawsuit against the Urban Contractors in an effort to ensure the terms of the 
Second Contract are followed.  The parties are participating in mediation hearings to attempt to resolve the 
issue. 
 
The District will continue to focus its efforts in achieving its mission of restoring and protecting the Eastern 
San Joaquin Groundwater Basin by serving its community with projects like the water efficiency 
enhancements completed in 2006-2007 and the Farmington Groundwater Recharge and Seasonal Habitat 
Program, a 20-year $33.3 million effort, launched in 2001.  Surface water treated and delivered to its Urban 
Contractors is considered “in-lieu” groundwater recharge (an acre-foot of water not pumped from the basin 
is available for future use as stored groundwater).  By encouraging a dual surface and groundwater supply 
system among the Urban Contractors, land developers, and the District’s agricultural customers, the District 
can address the problems created by the region’s critically over-drafted basin,  
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

March 31, 2021  
 
retard saline intrusion, provide seasonal habitat for migratory waterfowl, and ultimately provide a 
sustainable long-term reliable water supply for its customers. 
 
Joint efforts are ongoing to develop and undertake groundwater recharge/banking projects to achieve a 
sustainable conjunctively managed surface and groundwater supply for the region.  The focus of these 
projects is the construction of surface water distribution, storage, and recovery systems that store unused 
surface water and ultimately put it to beneficial use when surface water shortages occur.  The District also 
plans to increase dry-year water availability to the Urban Contractors by developing a 230-acre surface 
water-storage facility on the north side of the District’s water treatment plant.  On July 15, 2014, the District 
completed the purchase of the 230-acre parcel for a total of $5,300,000.  The purchase was partially financed 
with a $3,325,000 note payable to the Bank of Stockton.  The District has already developed 73 acres of 
the 230-acre site and has started recharging water beginning August of 2019.  Additionally, the District is 
currently developing plans for a surface water storage facility geared specifically for recharge which 
encompasses roughly 96 acres.  The remaining acreage will have variety of uses unrelated to water storage 
or recharge. 
 
 
The District is developing a “banking division” strategy that may operate independent of either the 
Agricultural or Municipal Divisions.  This strategy, modeled after successful water banks in the southern 
San Joaquin Valley, has the potential to create a revenue stream that assures the long-term viability of the 
District and its existing divisions. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
The financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the District’s finances.  
Questions concerning any of the information provided herein or requests for additional information should 
be addressed to the Finance Director, Stockton East Water District, P.O. Box 5157, Stockton, California 
95205. 
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Assets 2021 2020
Current assets
    Cash and cash equivalents 5,977,580$       25,645,882$    
    Water assessments receivable 976,294            1,516,500        
    Investments 31,347,150       -                       
    Interest and other receivables 891,446            1,059,048        
    Current maturities of contract receivable 54,680              54,680             
    Prepaid expenses and supplies 541,824            934,706           
        Total current assets 39,788,974       29,210,816      
Restricted assets
    Cash and cash equivalents 608,373            10,177,162      
    Investments 6,974,679         38,977             
    Developer fees receivable 726,121            558,799           
        Total restricted assets 8,309,173         10,774,938      
Property, plant and equipment, net of depreciation 84,111,491       85,387,849      
Other assets
    Water assessments receivable 28,000,451       27,944,146      
    Contract receivable and other assets 214,977            307,602           
            Total assets 160,425,066     153,625,351    
    Deferred outflows of resources 1,777,910         1,971,424        
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 162,202,976$   155,596,775$  

Liabilities and net position
Current liabilities 
    Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,281,606$       2,492,244$      
    Compensated absences payable 681,910            549,766           
    Customer prepaid water tolls 29,801,147       28,994,975      
    Current portion of long-term debt 6,049,226         5,803,554        
        Total current liabilities 39,813,890       37,840,540      
Long-term debt, less current portion
    State revolving fund 7,736,099         8,309,143        
    Other loans payable 25,461,797       30,937,978      
Post employment benefits 6,179,162         6,125,233        
Net pension liability 6,191,401         5,852,107        
        Total liabilities 85,382,349       89,065,001      
Deferred inflows of resources 754,164            1,175,060        
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 86,136,513       90,240,061      
Net position
    Invested in capital assets 45,590,492       40,947,124      
    Restricted for urban contractors 5,400,405         8,302,201        
    Restricted for capital projects 1,949,727         2,180,940        
    Restricted for dry year reserves 323,444            306,323           
    Unrestricted 22,802,396       13,620,127      
        Total net position 76,066,464       65,356,715      
            Total liabilities and net position 162,202,976$   155,596,775$  

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Stockton East Water District

Statement of Net Position

March 31, 
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Operating revenues 2021 2020
Surface water sales and ground assessments 1,746,599$        1,745,929$        
Municipal and industrial water 26,924,669        23,944,358        
Source of supply charges 480,793             307,889             
Distribution charges 150,000             150,000             
    Total operating revenues 29,302,061        26,148,176        

Operating expenses
Source of supply 4,687,055          2,775,002          
Transmission and distribution 2,486,200          1,938,568          
Water treatment 7,519,518          6,136,018          
General and administrative 4,245,195          4,137,336          
Depreciation and amortization 3,404,928          3,649,957          
    Total operating expenses 22,342,896        18,636,881        
        Operating profit 6,959,165          7,511,295          

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Property taxes 519,585             507,575             
Interest and investment income 336,125             909,314             
Grant and other revenues 838,677             858,506             
Interest expense (1,710,954)        (2,084,217)        
Developer fees 3,744,457          2,473,771          
    Total nonoperating revenues 3,727,889          2,664,948          
Net pension expense 22,693               (243,367)           
        Increase in net position 10,709,749        9,932,878          
Total net position, beginning of year 65,356,715        55,423,837        
Total net position, end of year 76,066,464$      65,356,715$      

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Stockton East Water District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended March 31,
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2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
    Cash received from customers 30,759,736$     24,052,818$     
    Cash payments for goods and services (13,417,905)      (10,860,112)      
    Cash payments to employees (3,492,446)        (4,657,605)        
        Net cash provided by operating activities 13,849,385       8,535,101         

Cash flows from non-capital and related financing activities
    Property taxes 519,585            507,575            
    Grant revenues 835,616            853,285            
        Net cash provided by non-capital and related financing activities 1,355,201         1,360,860         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
    Principal payments on certificates of participation -                        (41,700,871)      
    Interest paid (1,710,954)        (2,084,217)        
    Developer fees received 3,744,457         2,473,771         
    Proceeds from long-term contract receivable 56,305              54,436              
    Change in other loans payable (5,803,553)        45,949,982       
    Purchases of capital assets, net (2,964,186)        (4,258,858)        
        Net cash provided by (used) in cap and related financing activities (6,677,931)        434,243            

Cash flows from investing activities
    Net change in restricted assets (7,080,331)        (9,532,323)        
    Net change investments (31,347,150)      -                        
    Interest income 663,735            671,169            
        Net cash used in investing activities (37,763,746)      (8,861,154)        
            Net (de)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (29,237,091)      1,469,050         
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 35,823,044       34,353,994       
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 6,585,953$       35,823,044$     

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Stockton East Water District

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended March 31,
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2021 2020
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities
Income from operations 6,959,166$        7,511,295$        
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to net cash
    provided by operating activities
    Depreciation and amortization 3,404,928          3,649,957          
    Other non-cash adjustments 320,007            (518,657)           
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
        Water assessments and other receivables 707,808            136,591            
        Prepaid expenses and supplies 392,882            533,662            
        Accounts payable 789,362            (544,186)           
        Accrued payroll and related liabilities 525,365            (1,612)               
        Customer prepaid water tolls 749,867            (1,803,712)        
        Deferred revenue -                        (428,237)           
            Net cash provided by operating activities 13,849,385$      8,535,101$        

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Stockton East Water District

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended March 31,
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 
 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
This summary of significant accounting policies of Stockton East Water District (the District) is presented to 
assist in understanding the District’s financial statements. 

 
Description of reporting entity 

 
The District was organized on June 7, 1948 under the provisions of the California Water Conservation District 
Act of 1931.   
 
The District’s principal functions are: 
 

a. Develop and operate groundwater recharge and banking facilities to restore and protect the underground water 
supply, 

b. Contract for and regulate the flow of water from the New Hogan Dam on the Calaveras River to provide 
maximum benefit to the underground water supply, 

c. Contract for a supply of water from New Melones Dam on the Stanislaus River and regulate the diversion flow at 
Goodwin Dam through the New Melones Conveyance System for use within the Stockton East Water District and 
the Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District, 

d. Distribution of an agricultural surface water supply to more than 26,000 acres by use of check dams in natural 
channels, 

e. Operation of a drinking water treatment plant to supplement the supply of potable water to the metropolitan 
Stockton area, and 

f. Develop additional water supply contracts to provide future supplemental sources for the ultimate water needs of 
the area. 

 
The governing board of the District consists of seven directors elected by the registered voters to represent 
specific areas within the District. 
District management considered all potential component units for inclusion in the reporting entity by applying the 
criteria set forth in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The District 
concluded that there are no potential component units which should be included in the reporting entity. 
 
Basis of accounting 
 

 The financial statements have been prepared on the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting.  As allowed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 56, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance the District’s proprietary funds follow all GASB 
pronouncements and accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and included 
in the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC), except those that conflict with a GASB pronouncement.   
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Basis of accounting 

 
 Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and 

expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The District’s operating revenues include all revenues derived 
from the District’s principal functions.  Operating expenses include all costs related to the District’s principal 
functions, general and administrative expenses, depreciation on capital assets and amortization on certificates of 
participation and installment purchase agreement issuance costs.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses, except for developer fees which are reported 
separately and represent capital contributions charged by the District relative to water service area annexation. 

 
 The District combines the accounts of all divisions.  Interdivision transactions are eliminated in combination. 

 
Fund accounting 
 
The District utilizes proprietary funds to account for its activities, which are similar to those found in the private 
sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful for sound financial administration. 
 

 Budgetary accounting 
 

 The District utilizes formal budgetary procedures as required by District contracts, but is not required to adopt 
such procedures by law.  The District adopts a budget annually which is approved by the Board of Directors. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 

 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers cash on hand, amounts due on demand from 
financial institutions within three months to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Investments 

 
Investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased are reported at cost, which 
approximates fair value.  Investments that mature beyond three months when purchased are reported at fair value.  
Fair value is determined by examining quoted market prices.  The change in fair value is included in nonoperating 
revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Water assessments receivable 

 
Water assessments receivable includes all amounts invoiced and not received by the District for surface water 
sales and groundwater assessments and municipal and industrial water. Under accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, an allowance for doubtful accounts is required to be provided based on 
historical experience and management’s evaluation of outstanding receivables.  The District maintains water 
assessments receivable included in other assets totaling $28,000,451 and $27,944,146 from the City of Stockton 
as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  The City of Stockton constructed the Delta Water Supply Project 
(DWSP) to supplement the supply of potable water for the City of Stockton’s water service area.  The 
construction of DWSP reduced the City of Stockton’s share of water received from the District and, as a result, 
the City of Stockton has reduced its Base Monthly Payment (BMP) payment.  However, BMPs under the Second 
Amended Contract are based on total water use within the District’s service area and not water delivered from the 
treatment plant.  BMPs from the City of Stockton continue to be in error and the District has demanded that 
payments be made in a timely manner in accordance with the Second Amended Contract.  District management 
has not evaluated water assessments receivable from the City of Stockton included in other assets as of March 31, 
2021 and 2020 for doubtful accounts. 
 
Except as noted in the previous paragraph, District management considers all accounts receivable from water 
users and others to be fully collectible.  Accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accounts has not been recorded in 
these financial statements. 
 
Prepaid chemicals and supplies 

 
The District’s prepaid supplies, which includes chemicals, fuel and laboratory supplies is stated at the lower of 
cost or market using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method of valuation. 
 
Restricted assets 

 
 Restricted assets recorded in the financial statements consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, interest 

receivable and developer fees receivable restricted for the following: 
 

Repayment of certificates of participation 
Urban Contractors’ (City of Stockton, California Water Service Company, Lincoln Village Maintenance 
District and Colonial Heights Maintenance District) directives  
New Melones Conveyance System construction and improvements originating from certificates of 
participation issuances  
Treatment plant repairs and replacement 
Dry year reserves 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Capital assets 
 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost.  The District’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding 
certain minimum thresholds and with useful lives exceeding two years. 
 
GASB Statement No. 34 requires that all capital assets with limited useful lives be depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives.  Depreciation has been provided on capital assets and is charged as an expense against 
operations each year.  The total amount of depreciation taken over the years is reported on the balance sheet as a 
reduction in the book value of capital assets. 
 
Depreciation is provided using the straight line method which means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected 
useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated.  The District has 
assigned the useful lives listed below to capital assets. 

 
Water contracts and rights   40 years 

Wells and equipment  5 – 20 years 
Groundwater recharge projects and pipelines  10 – 50 years 

New Melones Conveyance System  5 – 50 years 

Ponding dams  15 – 50 years 

Bridges and crossings  5 – 33 years 

Treatment plant  10 – 50 years 

Treatment plant equipment  5 – 30 years 

Automotive equipment  5 – 15 years 

Administration building   10 – 25 years 

Furniture and office equipment  5 – 10 years 

 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized. 
 
Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the related carrying amount may not be recoverable.  When required, impairment losses on assets to 
be held and used are recognized based on the fair value of the asset.  Long-lived assets to be disposed of are 
reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

 Amortization of cost of issuance and refunding costs 
 
 Issuance costs related to certificates of participation and installment purchase agreements are capitalized and 

amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the respective certificates of participation and 
installment purchase agreement.  Refunding costs related to the issuance of certificates of participation used to 
advance refund other certificates of participation are capitalized and amortized using the effective interest method 
over the remaining life of the old debt (had it not been refunded) or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. All 
is recorded in accordance with GASB 65. 

 
 Reclassifications 
 
 Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year financial statement presentation. Net 

positions was unaffected. 
 
 Customer prepaid water tolls 
 
 Overpayments of BMP payments by the Urban Contractors are accrued and reported as customer deposits.  As of 

March 31, 2021, customer deposits consist of $26,410,359 from California Water Service Company, $2,745,103 
from Lincoln Village Maintenance District, and $645,685 from Colonial Heights Maintenance District.  As of 
March 31, 2020, customer deposits consist of $25,604,187 from California Water Service Company, $2,745,103 
from Lincoln Village Maintenance District, and $645,685 from Colonial Heights Maintenance District.   

 
Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
 
In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows 
and inflows of resources, represents a consumption and acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow or inflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until 
then.  The District reported $1,777,910 and $1,971,424 and $754,164 and $1,175,060 of deferred outflow 
and inflows, respectively, as of March 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 

       Due from other divisions 
 
 Expenses incurred by each division are occasionally paid by another division, upon authorization by the Board of 

Directors pursuant to its  authorizing legislation. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

 Net position 
 

Equity in the financial statements is classified as net position and displayed in three components as follows: 
 

 a. Net investment in capital assets – Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

 
 b. Restricted net position – Consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 

related to those assets. 
 

 c. Unrestricted net position – Consists of the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or 
the restricted component of net position. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 

 Net position restrictions  
 

Net position restricted for Urban Contractors’ directives, New Melones Conveyance System construction and 
improvements, treatment plant repairs and replacements and dry year reserves, are recorded in the financial 
statements as restricted net position.   
 
Surface water sales and ground water assessments 
 
Surface and ground water revenues result from assessments by the District and are based upon acres irrigated or 
actual usage for agricultural or municipal and industrial purposes. 
 

 Municipal and industrial water 
 
Municipal and industrial water revenues are primarily derived from fees charged under the Second Amended 
Contract.  In addition, ground water rate equalization charges levied on ground water users within the municipal 
and industrial water service area are also included in municipal and industrial water revenue. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 
 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

 Property taxes 
 Property taxes levied January 1, 2020 were payable in two installments on December 10, 2020 and April 10, 

2021.  Property taxes levied January 1, 2018 were payable in two installments on December 10, 2018  and April 
10, 2020.  The County of San Joaquin bills and collects property taxes on behalf of the District. 
 

 The District is allocated a portion of property taxes collected by San Joaquin County.  Property taxes receivable 
represents a portion of the July 1 to June 30 property taxes earned but uncollected at March 31.   

 
 Grant revenues 

Income from grant agreements is recognized over the periods in which performance under the respective grant 
agreement relates.  Determination of the classification of grant revenues as operating or nonoperating is based on the 
capital or operating nature of the related expenditures. 
 
Subsequent events 
The District has evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after March 31, 2021, and through the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued.  

 
Estimates 
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 

Recent accounting pronouncements-  
 
GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct 
Placements, issued April 2018, improves the information that is disclosed in notes related to debt. Statement No. 
88 simplifies which liabilities government should include when disclosing information related to debt. It requires 
that additional information related to debt be disclosed. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2020. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the provisions of GASB 88 on the financial 
statements  
 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases addresses changes to the reporting of leases. The GASB rules will bring 
significantly all leases on to lessees’ balance sheets. The new guidance requires lessee government to report on (1) 
amortization expense, (2) interest expense on the lease liability and (3) note disclosures about the lease, general 
description and agreements, along with the amount of lease assets recognized and a schedule of future payments. 
The lessor government will report in its financial statements (1) lease receivable, (2) interest revenue on the 
receivable, (3) lease revenue corresponding with the reduction of the deferred inflow, and (4) note disclosures 
about the leases, general description and leasing agreement, along with the total amount of inflows of resources 
recognized from leases. The new rules exclude leases related to investment assets, short-term leases and certain 
regulated leases. The new statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Management 
is currently evaluating the impact of the provisions of GASB 87 on the financial statements  
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
GASB 68 established standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred 
inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit pensions, this Statement identifies the 
methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to 
their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service.  Distinctions are 
made regarding the particular requirements for employers based on the number of employers whose employees 
are provided with pensions through the pension plan and whether pension obligations and pension plan assets are 
shared.  In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with 
liabilities (payables) to a defined benefit pension plan and for employers whose employees are provided with 
defined contribution pensions.  This Statement also addresses circumstances in which a nonemployer entity has a 
legal requirement to make contributions directly to a pension plan. 
 
The District recognized additional liabilities for outstanding defined pension benefit obligations as of March 31, 
2021. 
 
Note 2 – Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under 
state law (unless so waived by the government unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral 
pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows 
financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 
150% of the secured public deposits.  The District’s bank deposits are not held in public deposit accounts and are, 
therefore, not collateralized in accordance with the California Government Code. 
 
Cash held by the San Joaquin County Treasury is pooled with other County deposits for investment purposes by the 
County Treasurer in accordance with the investment policy of the County Treasurer. The Pool has established a 
treasury oversight committee to monitor and review the management of public funds maintained in the Pool.  
Participants’ equity in the investment pool is determined by the dollar amount of the participant deposits, adjusted 
for withdrawals and distributed investment income.  Investment income is prorated to individual funds based on 
their average daily cash balances.  The value of the District shares in the Pool, which may be withdrawn, is 
determined on an amortized cost basis, which is different than the fair value of the District’s position in the Pool.  The 
District’s investment in the Pool is unrated, stated at amortized cost which approximates fair value, available upon 
demand and considered cash equivalents. The District is not required to and does not maintain a formal investment 
policy.  This accounts were moved to another financial institutions and were $0 balance at March 31, 2021. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
 
Note 3 – Investments 
 
The District is a voluntary participant in the following external investment pool: Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF). LAIF is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California. The fair value of the District’s investments in these pools are reported in the accompanying financial 
statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the pools for their 
entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). 
 
Note 4 – Restricted Assets 
 
 The following is a summary of restricted assets along with the purpose of each restriction as of March 31, 
 

2021 2020

-$                      -$                           

5,400,405        8,019,229             

818,024           1,160,290             

1,121,702        1,018,295             

323,444           306,323                 

7,663,575$      10,504,137$         

Repayment of certificates of participation

Urban Contractors’ directives

New Melones Conveyance System construction and improvements

Treatment plant repairs and replacement

Dry year reserves
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 
Note 5 – Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows: 
 

Nodepreciable capital assets March 31, 2020 Additions Disposals Transfer March 31, 2021

Land and land rights 7,610,338$       -$              -$         -$         7,610,338$       
Construction in progress 0                       1,782,060      346,424   2,128,484         

Total nondepreciable capital assets 7,610,338         1,782,060      -           346,424   9,738,822         

Depreciable capital assets

Water contracts and rights 3,142,139         3,142,139         

Wells and equipment 1,677,668         32,171           1,709,839         

Groundwater recharge projects 2,297,775         2,297,775         

Pipeline 17,869,310       17,869,310       

New Melones Conveyance 77,257,508       -           77,257,508       

Ponding dams 712,576            -           712,576            

Bridges and crossings 200,624            -                200,624            

Treatment plant 46,127,268       314,340         (346,424)  46,095,183       

Treatment plant equipment 2,011,720         2,011,720         

Automotive equipment 1,526,003         -                (132,725)  1,393,277         

Administration building 282,831            282,831            
Furniture and office equipment 246,646            246,646            

Total depreciable assets 153,352,068     346,511         (132,725)  (346,424)  153,219,429     

Less accumulated depreciation (75,574,558)      (3,404,928)    132,725   -           (78,846,760)      

Total depreciable assets, net 77,777,511       (3,058,417)    -           (346,424)  74,372,669       

Total capital assets, net 85,387,849$     (1,276,358)$  -$         -$         84,111,491$     
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 
 

Note 5 – Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows: 

Balance Balance

Nondepreciable capital assets March 31, 2019 Additions Disposals Transfers March 31, 2020

    Land and land rights 7,610,338           -                    7,610,338           

    Construction in progress 2,544,252           -                    (2,544,252) -                           

Total nondepreciable capital assets 10,154,590         -                    -                  (2,544,252) 7,610,338           

Depreciable capital assets

    Water contracts and rights 3,142,139           3,142,139           

    Wells and equipment 1,643,787           33,882         -                  1,677,669           

    Groundwater recharge projects 2,297,775           -                    -                  2,297,775           

    Pipeline 17,869,310         -                    17,869,310         

    New Melones Conveyance 77,257,508         -                    -                  77,257,508         

    Ponding dams 712,576              -                  712,576              

    Bridges and crossings 65,082                 135,542       200,624              

    Treatment plant 39,520,374         4,062,642    2,544,252  46,127,268         

    Treatment plant equipment 2,011,720           -                    2,011,720           

    Automotive equipment 1,499,212           26,791         -                  1,526,003           

    Administration building 282,831              -                    282,831              

    Furniture and office equipment 246,646              -                    246,646              

Total depreciable capital assets 146,548,960       4,258,857    -                  2,544,252  153,352,069       

Less accumulated depreciation (72,177,954)       (3,396,604)  -                  -                  (75,574,558)       

Total depreciable capital  assets, net 74,371,006         862,253       -                  2,544,252  77,777,511         

Total capital assets, net 84,525,596$       862,253$     -$                -$                85,387,849$       

 
Construction in progress at March 31, 2021 consists of three projects. Stockton East Water District is in process 
of designing a new fish ladder at Bellota Weir, reconstructing the Bellota Weir itself, screening the Bellota intake, 
and constructing a fish exclusion at the Old Calaveras River headgate structure. The project has multiple benefits 
and is a priority list item on the State's Fish Passage and Water Diversion for Screening lists. As a part of the 
CALFED Bay Delta Ecosystem Restoration Program, Department of Water Resources' (DWR's) Fish Passage 
Improvement Program (FPIP) conducted the "(Calaveras River Fish Migration Barriers Assessment Report", 
which included a detailed fishery study and modeling of potential impediments to migration in the Calaveras 
River and recommended similar actions at Bellota as the proposed Project.  The proposed Project is also an 
important element of the Calaveras River Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) as part of Stockton East Water 
District's (SEWD's) application for National Marine Fisheries Service's Incidental Take Permit (ITP)The design is 
expected to be completed in fiscal year 2022-2023.   
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 
 

Note 5 – Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
 
As of March 31, 2021 the District has expended $512,694 towards the design, which is included in the March 31, 
2021 construction in progress account. The District estimates costs to complete the design will be $2,679,884, 
which will be funded out of the Treatment Plant budget and grants for this purpose. 
 
Stockton East Water District is in process of constructing improvements within the New Melones Conveyance 
facility.  The improvements will ameliorate severance concerns related to landowner’s along the conveyance 
system and will help said landowner’s transport of vehicles, supplies, and equipment.  The project is expected to 
be completed in the 3rd quarter of FY 2021-2022.  As of March 31, 2021 the District has expended $483,962 
towards the project which is included in the March 31, 2021 construction in progress account. The District 
estimates costs to complete the project will be $174,644, which will be funded out of the administration division’s 
New Melones Conveyance Fund’s reserves. 
 
Stockton East Water District is in process of developing and implementing a new SCADA system to be used in its 
treatment plant.  A SCADA system is made up of programmable logic controllers (PLCs) which communicate 
with objects within the SCADA system such as machinery, devices and displays. The SCADA software 
processes, distributes, and displays the data, helping operators and other employees analyze the data and make 
important decisions.  It can also automate certain tasks and provide failsafes for the system.  The project is 
expected to be completed in FY 2023-2024.  As of March 31, 2021 the District has expended $1,131,827 towards 
the project which is included in the March 31, 2021 construction in progress account. The District estimates costs 
to complete the project will be $1,750,000, which will be funded out of the administration division’s budget. 
 
 
Note 6 – Long-Term Contract Receivable 

 
Under terms of the “District Contract” dated August 25, 1970, between Stockton East Water District and 
Calaveras County Water District, the payment of all obligations under the “New Hogan Contract” is the 
responsibility of Stockton East Water District.  The District Contract provides for payment by Calaveras County 
Water District to Stockton East Water District for 43.5% of the construction costs of New Hogan Dam exclusive 
of recreation features.  The original amount receivable was determined by reference to the final construction cost 
of $15,362,636.  The contract also provides for payment to Stockton East Water District for Calaveras County 
Water District’s share of expense for operation, maintenance, replacement, contract administration and water-
master expense. Total remaining balance at March 31, 2021 and 2020, (including current portion) was $269,657 
and $325,045, respectively. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 
 
Note 7 – Long-Term Debt: Certificates of Participation and Installment Purchase Agreement 
 
The certificates of participation and installment purchase agreement issuances were closed and paid off during 
the year ended March 31, 2020.  
 
 
Note 8 – Long-Term Debt: Other Loan Payable 
 
In 2019, the District entered in three notes payable with Pacific Western Bank to provide financing for the 
retirement and repayment of all Certificates of Participation and Installment Agreement as noted in Note 7. The 
interest rates range from 4.31% to 4.90%, ten year amortization period. Future principal payments for the five 
succeeding years of March 31, 2021 are as follows: $5,331,000 in 2022; $3,135,000 in 2023; $3,292,000 in 2024; 
$3,455,000 in 2025, and $3,085,000 in 2026. 
 
The District entered into a funding agreement with the State of California Department of Public Health.  The 
purpose of the funding agreement is to assist the District in financing the construction of a 10 million gallon 
finished water reservoir and repair of the District’s existing finished water reservoir.  The funding agreement 
consists of a $15,000,000 revolving loan, equal to the total estimated construction cost and repairs.  The revolving 
loan carries no interest, and, upon completion of construction and repairs, is amortized over a 20-year term and 
payable in semi-annual payments each January 1 and July 1, beginning July 1, 2020.  The District will fund the 
repayment of the revolving loan with municipal and industrial water revenues.  The balance of the state revolving 
fund loan was $8,308,773 and $8,882,188 as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Future principal 
payments for the five succeeding years of March 31, 2021 are as follows: $572,674 in 2021; $572,674 in 2022; 
$572,674 in 2023; $572,674 in 2024; and $572,674 in 2025. 

 
In 2014, the District entered into a $3,325,000 note payable with the Bank of Stockton to provide financing 
relative to the purchase of real property adjacent to the District’s treatment plant property, consisting of 
approximately 230 acres.  The note is payable in 19 quarterly installments of $56,932, with interest at 3.95%, 
collateralized by a deed of trust on real property, with all remaining principal and accrued interest due July 15, 
2024.  The District will fund the repayment of the Bank of Stockton note payable with municipal and industrial 
water revenues. Future principal payments for the succeeding years from March 31, 2021 are as follows: 
$144,029 in 2022, $149,803 in 2023, $155,809 in 2024, $162,055 in 2025, and $168,552 in 2026. 
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March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
 
Note 9 – Net Position 
 
Reconciliations of net investment in capital assets and restricted net position classifications in the financial 

statements as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 
 

Net investment in capital assets 2021 2020

-$                      38,977$                 

726,121           558,799                 

84,111,491      85,387,849           

-                        12,174                   

(6,049,226)       (5,803,554)            

(33,197,896)    (39,247,121)          

45,590,490$    40,947,124$         

Restricted for urban contractors

10,000              5,321,079             

5,390,405        27,388                   

5,400,405$      5,348,467$           

Restricted for capital projects

598,373           1,792,563             

1,351,353        7,345                     

1,949,726$      1,799,908$           

Restricted for dry year reserves

323,444           286,193                 

323,444$         286,193$              

Investments

Developer fees receivable

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

COP issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets)

Long-term debt

Investments and interest receivable, restricted  

Total net position restricted for capital projects

Cash and investments – restricted

Total net position restricted for dry year reserves

Total net investment in capital assets

Cash and cash equivalents – restricted 

Investments and interest receivable, restricted  

Total net position restricted for urban contractors

Cash and cash equivalents – restricted 

 
 

Note 10 – Compensated Absences 
 

As of March 31, 2021 and 2020, the District’s accrued liabilities for accumulated unused vacation and sick leave 
were $681,910 and $549,766, respectively.  Employees accrue vacation and sick leave benefits based on length of 
service and current compensation.  Accumulated vacation days are subject to a maximum accrual of 240 hours.  
Accumulated unused sick leave is 25% vested upon five years of continued service and 50% vested upon ten 
years of continued service.  Employees are paid for their accumulated unused vacation and sick leave upon 
separation of service. 
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March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 
 
 

Note 11 – Developer Fees 
 
 Developer fees are collected to repay debt associated with the New Melones Conveyance System, which is 

currently expected to be thru 2029. Fees collected are recorded in the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net assets.  A schedule of the changes in total developer fees collected during the years ended March 
31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows: 
 
 City of  San Joaquin 
 Stockton County Total 

Total developer fees collected as 
of March 31, 2019 

 
$ 70,189,440 

 
$ 4,929,802 

 
$ 75,119,242 

    
Developer fees collected during the 

year ended March 31, 2020 
 
 2,290,124 

 
 184,647 

 
          2,473,771 

    
Total developer fees collected as 

of March 31, 2020 
 
$ 72,479,564 

 
$ 5,249,208 

 
$ 77,593,013 

    
Developer fees collected during the 

year ended March 31, 2021 
 
 3,485,406 

 
 259,051 

 
         3,774,457 

    
Total developer fees collected as 

of March 31, 2021 
 
$ 75,964,970 

 
$ 5,508,259 

 
$ 81,473,229 
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March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

 
Note 12 – Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 

 Plan description 
 
 The District’s defined benefit pension plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living 

adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  The plan is part of the Public Agency portion of 
the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), an cost-sharing multiple-employer plan 
administered by CalPERS, which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public 
employers within the State of California.  A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements are established 
by State statutes within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  The District selects optional benefit provisions 
from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS.  CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial 
report.  CalPERS maintains all plan documents on a June 30 fiscal year basis.  Copies of the CalPERS’ annual 
financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

 
 California Public Employees Pension Reform Act of 2012 
 
 On September 12, 2012, the California Governor signed the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 

2020 (PEPRA) into law.  PEPRA took effect January 1, 2013. 
 
 Key components of the legislation are as follows: 
 

Establishes PEPRA, which will apply to all public employers and public pension plans on and after January 1, 
2013 (Except specific exemptions); 
Establishes new retirement tiers/benefits for new public employees; 
Requires that new employees pay at least 50% of the total annual normal cost and that current employees 
approach the same goal through collective bargaining; 
Increases retirement age for all new public employees. 
 
Separate tiers based on employee classification (Miscellaneous 2% at 55 and PEPRA Miscellaneous 2% at 62) are 
maintained and reported by CalPERS on behalf of the District. Both tiers are under the scope of GASB 68. 

 
 Funding policy 
 
 Active plan members who are part of the Miscellaneous 2% at 55 tier are required to contribute 7% of their annual 

covered salary which the District pays as a component of the employees’ benefit package.  Active plan members 
who are part of the PEPRA Miscellaneous 2% at 62 tier are required to contribute 50% of the total normal cost.  
District contributions on behalf of active plan members who are part of the PEPRA Miscellaneous 2% at 55 tier 
will continue until March 31, 2026, at which time the current memorandum of understanding with employees 
expires. 
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Note 12 – Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions, became effective for 2014 fiscal years. The statement established accounting and financial reporting 
standards for the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with a liability to a defined benefit 
pension plan. GASB 68 requires that the District’s liability be measured as the portion of the present value of 
projected benefit payments to be provided to current and inactive employees that is attributed to the employee’s 
past periods of service, less the amount of the plan’s net position.  The statement also requires employers to 
present information about the changes in net pension liability. The District is also required to present a ten year 
schedule containing the net pension liability and certain related ratios, and information about statutorily or 
contractually required contributions and related ratios.  Until a full ten year trend is complied, the District will 
present information for only those years for which information is available.  
 
The following is information the District is required to disclose under GASB 68.  
 
Pension liabilities: At March 31, 2021, the District reported a liability of $5,852,107 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District’s share of 
contributions in the plan relative to the total contributions of all participating employers. At June 30, 2020, the 
District’s proportion was .00007 percent. The District’s liability as of March 31, 2021 was measured as of June 
30, 2020, for the measurement period of June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. 
 
Employees covered by benefit terms:  There are currently 38 active participants in the plan, and 38 participants 
receiving benefits, also one is no longer employed by the District but is vested. 
 
Contributions: The recommended contribution for the 2021 plan year is $687,595 (assuming contributions will be 
deposited throughout the plan year). The overall contributions to the plan as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll was 17.3%.  Additionally, the District made a voluntary contribution of $148,528 in November 2019. 
 
Actuarial assumptions: Level percentages of payroll normal costs are determined using the Entry Age Normal 
Cost Method.  Under the Entry Age Normal Cost Method, the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of 
each individual included in the actuarial valuation is allocated as a level percentage of each year’s earning of the 
individual between entry age and assumed exit age. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020 measurement 
date actuarial valuation was determined using the following assumptions, applied to all periods in the 
measurement: 1) Inflation of 2.75%; 2) Payroll growth of 3%; 3) 7.5% investment rate of return. 
 
Mortality rates were based on the CalPERS experience Study for a eighteen year period reported in December 
2017. 
 
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate:  It is estimated that a 1% increase in the 
discount rate would decrease the net pension liability by approximately $2.92 million dollars and a 1% decrease 
in the discount rate would increase the net pension liability by approximately $3.53 million dollars. 
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March 31, 2021 and 2020 
 
Note 12– Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 
 
Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made at the current 
contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially 
determined.  Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability.  The long-term expected rate of return was determined net of pension plan investment expense but 
without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. 
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources:  The following table presents deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources related to pensions as of March 31, 2021: 

       
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources   
Deferred Inflows of 

Resources 

  Changes of Assumptions                             -                      44,161  
  Differences between Expected and Actual Experience                  319,061                               - 

 Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings                  183,925                               -    

  
Differences between Employer's Contributions and 

Proportionate Share of Contributions   
                           -                     139,508  

  Change in Employer's Proportion                    17,845                    501,403  
Pension Contributions Made Subsequent to Measurement Date                  687,595                              -    

                  1,208,427                    685,070  

            

 
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be amortized in pension expense in future years as required. 
 

 
Note 13 – Deferred Compensation Plan   
 
The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457.  The plan, available to all permanent District employees, permits them to defer a portion of their 
compensation until future years, and is strictly voluntary on behalf of the employees, and is not mandated by the 
District.  The deferred compensation is available to employees upon termination, retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency.   
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 Note 14 – Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 

The District provides post-employment health benefits, in accordance with a negotiated memorandum of 
understanding with employees and adoption by the Board of Directors, for retired employees who meet the 
eligibility requirements and elect the option.  Benefits are recognized as claims are paid.  The District 
implemented GASB 75 as of April 1, 2020.  The required disclosures from the new standard are as follows: 
 
Plan description 

Plan administration. The District administers the Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plan, a single 
employer defined benefit plan. 

Benefits provided. The District provides post-employment health benefits, in accordance with a negotiated 
memorandum of understanding with employees and adoption by the Board of Directors, for retired employees 
who meet the eligibility requirements and elect the option. 

In order to be eligible to retire with District-paid health benefits, an employee must have been hired before April 
1, 2015, completed five years of service with the District, and have retired under CalPERS. For retirements 
occurring before the effective date of the MOU dated August 19, 2008, the District will pay full medical 
premiums for the lifetime of the retiree. For retirements occurring after the effective date of the MOU, the 
following two additional provisions apply: 

1. Retirees over age 65 must enroll in Medicare to preserve their eligibility for lifetime District-paid 
benefits; and 

2. The District will contribute a percentage of a covered spouse's medical premium based on years of 
service of the retiree as follows: 0% for less than 20 years of service, 50% for at least 20 years but less 
than 30 years of service, and 100% for 30 or more years of service. 

Benefits are recognized as claims are paid. 

Plan membership. At March 31, 2021, membership consisted of the following: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 20 
Active plan members 20  

Contributions. The District pays 100% of the cost of the OPEB plan.  The District funds the plan on a pay-as-you-
go basis. 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
 
The District’s Net OPEB Liability was measured as of March 31, 2021 and the Total OPEB Liability used to 
calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2020. Standard actuarial 
update procedures were used to project/discount from valuation to measurement dates. 

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
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Note 14 – Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)  
 

Salary increases 3.00 percent 
Inflation rate 2.75 percent 
Healthcare cost trend rate 5.00-5.20 percent for 2021-2069 

 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or Females, as 
appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Health Annuitant 
Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection. 

Actuarial assumptions used in the April 1, 2020 valuation were based on a review of plan experience during 
the period April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021. 

Discount rate. GASB 75 requires a discount rate that reflects the following: 

a) The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments – to the extent that the OPEB plan’s 
fiduciary net position (if any) is projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments and assets 
are expected to be invested using a strategy to achieve that return; 

b) A yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating 
of AA/Aa or higher – to the extent that the conditions in (a) are not met. 

To determine a resulting single (blended) rate, the amount of the plan’s projected fiduciary net position (if any) 
and the amount of projected benefit payments is compared in each period of projected benefit payments. The 
discount rate used to measure the District’s Total OPEB liability is based on these requirements and the 
following information: 

Reporting Date Measurement Date 

Long-Term  
Expected Return of 
Plan Investments 
(if any) 

Municipal Bond 20-
Year High Grade
Rate Index Discount Rate 

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 4.00% 2.48 2.48% 
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 4.00% 2.47% 2.47% 
 
The components of the net OPEB liability were as follows: 
 

Total OPEB liability 6,179,162 
Plan fiduciary net position 0 
Net OPEB liability $6,179,162  

Measurement date March 31, 2021 
Reporting date March 31, 2021  

Covered payroll $2,529,834 
Net OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of covered payroll 244.25% 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 0.00%  
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Note 14 – Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)  
 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability (April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021) 

Total OPEB Liability   
Service Cost $                  108,009 
Interest 148,469 
Changes of benefit terms 0 
Difference between expected and actual experience (90,030) 
Changes of assumptions 155,699 
Benefit payments1  (268,218) 
Net change in total OPEB liability 53,929 
Total OPEB liability – April 1, 2020 (a) $                 6,125,233 
Total OPEB liability – March 31, 2021 (b) $               6,179,162 

    
Plan fiduciary net position   
Contributions – employer1  268,218 
Net investment income 0 
Benefit payments1  (268,218) 
Trustee fees 0 
Administrative expense 0 
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 0 
Plan fiduciary net position – April 1, 2020 (c) $0 
Plan fiduciary net position – March 31, 2021 (d) $0 

    
Net OPEB liability – April 1, 2020 (c) – (a) $               6,125,233 
Net OPEB liability – March 31, 2021 (d) – (b) $             6,179,162  

1 Amount includes implicit subsidy associated with benefits paid. 
 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net OPEB 
liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 
 
  1% Decrease 

(1.27%) 
Discount Rate 

(2.27%) 
1% Increase 

(3.27%) 

Net OPEB liability (asset) 7,149,982 6,179,162 5,392,325  

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the net 
OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend 
rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

  1% Decrease  
(4.90% decreasing  

to 4.00%) 

Trend Rate  
(6.00% decreasing  

To 5.00%) 

1% Increase  
(6.90% decreasing to 

6.00%) 

Net OPEB liability (asset) 5,307,288 6,179,162 7,267,384 
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Note 14 – Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued)  
 
Net OPEB Expense 

The District’s Net OPEB expense for March 31, 2021 was $328,978. 

Net OPEB Liability - beginning (a) $       6,125,233 
Net OPEB Liability – ending (b)    $     6,179,162   
Change in Net OPEB Liability [(b)-(a)] 53,929 
Change in Deferred Outflows 65512 
Change in Deferred Inflows 69,093 
Employer Contributions 268,218 
Net OPEB Expense – April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 $         456,752     

 
Service Cost 108,009 
Interest Cost 148,469 
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows   

Differences between expected and actual experience (20,937) 
Changes of assumptions 221,211 
Differences between projected and actual investments 0 
Total 200,274 

Net OPEB Expense – April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021 $456,752 
 
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

At March 31, 2021, the District’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to OPEB from 
the following sources are: 

  Deferred Outflows  
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows  
of Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience  0 69,063 
Changes in assumptions or other inputs  566,276 0 
Differences between projected and actual return 
investments  

0 0 

Total $     566,276 $69,063 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year  
ending June 30: Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred Inflows  
of Resources 

2022 221,211 (20,937) 
2023 218,591 (20,937) 
2024 115,614 (20,937) 
2025 10,863 (6,282) 
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Note 15 – Joint Venture (Joint Powers Agreement) 

 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  In order to insure for risks of loss, the District 
participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement with the Association of California Water Agencies 
Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA).  The relationship between the District and the JPIA is such that the JPIA 
is not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes. 

 
The JPIA arranges for and provides self-insured programs for liability, property, workers’ compensation and 
underground storage tank pollution liability coverages for member districts. Each district pays a premium 
commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their 
participation in the JPIA.  The District’s share of surpluses and deficits cannot be determined, although District 
management does not expect such amounts, if any, to be material in relation to the financial statements. 

 
The latest audited financial information for the JPIA is for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020 and the 
condensed financial information of the JPIA is as follows: 
 

Total assets and deferred outflows  $ 238,579,823 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows   (114,892,616) 
   

Net position  $ 123,687,207 
   

 
The entity did not have long-term debt outstanding at September 30, 2020.  The District’s share of the year-end 
assets, liabilities or fund equity has not been calculated by the JPIA. 
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Note 16 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Second Amended Contract 
 
The District is a party to the Second Amended Contract with City of Stockton, California Water Service 
Company, San Joaquin County, Lincoln Village Maintenance District, and Colonial Heights Maintenance District 
(Urban Contractors) in which the District agreed to make available to the Urban Contractors a minimum of 
20,000 acre-feet of treated water.  The contract calls for the Urban Contractors to make payments to the District in 
the amounts necessary to reimburse the District for all municipal and industrial source of supply and transmission 
and distribution expenses, operation and maintenance costs of the treatment plant, principal and interest payments 
on certificates of participation used for the construction of the treatment plant and for the municipal and industrial 
share of conveyance and storage facilities and other items as specified under the Second Amended Contract.  The 
Contract remains in effect until April 1, 2035. 
 
Contractor payments under the Second Amended Contract are based on the proportion of total water produced by 
the respective contractor from any source, not only the amount delivered from the District.  In April 2012, the 
Urban Contractors signed an agreement, separate from the Second Amended Contract and not signed by the 
District, reallocating use of the District’s water supply.  The agreement also reallocated payments to the District 
based on water delivered by the District, rather than total water produced, which is inconsistent with the 
methodology in the Second Amended Contract.  Therefore, while the District has received payments in amounts 
equal to the total amount owed by all contractors under the Second Amended Contract, the payments have not 
been made by the contractor to whom the charge was allocated.  This issue is currently the subject of litigation 
among the parties. It is too early to estimate an outcome.  As of August 2021, the parties are participating in 
mediation hearings to attempt to resolve the issue. 
 
New Melones Contract 
 
Under terms of a contract known as the “New Melones Contract” dated October 4, 1983 between the United 
States of America and Stockton East Water District, the District contracted to receive water from the New 
Melones Dam and Reservoir on the Stanislaus River. The New Melones Contract establishes minimum and 
maximum amounts of water to be delivered for both agricultural and municipal and industrial use. These amounts 
of water delivered may be reduced under certain limited circumstances. Rates for the water delivered to the 
District are based on the rates set by the California Central Valley Project and the Bureau of Reclamation for 
agricultural and municipal and industrial water. 
 
The District has converted its contract to a “permanent” contract via provisions made available by the WIIN Act 
of 2016. This conversion means the District no longer needs to renew its contract and it would not be subject to 
certain limitations such as those imposed by the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982. The District does, however, 
within three years of conversion, have to pay for its allocated construction costs for irrigation and within a year 
for M&I. Under the previous terms of the contract those amounts had to be repaid by 2030. The District budgeted 
enough money in its FY 2020-2021 budget to fully pay said amounts, and they have been paid in full. 
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STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT 

Notes to Financial Statements 

March 31, 2021 and 2020 

Note 16 – Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 

New Hogan Dam Contract 
Under terms of a contract known as the “New Hogan Contract” dated August 25, 1970, between the United States 
of America, Stockton East Water District and Calaveras County Water District, the two districts contracted to 
receive the full yield of the New Hogan Project in exchange for repaying the United States of America a portion 
of the construction costs of New Hogan Dam, excluding recreation features. This repayment obligation was paid 
in 2011. 

The District now continues to pay for a portion of the annual operation, maintenance, replacement and contract 
administration costs. This payment is determined every five years based on estimated costs as determined by the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and adjusted for the differences between the actual costs and estimated costs of the 
prior five years. 

New Melones Conveyance System 
The District constructed the New Melones Conveyance System (the “System”) which transports water from the 
New Melones Reservoir to the District’s water treatment plant, as well as providing water for irrigation. This 
water provides a surface water supply in addition to the District’s existing surface supply from the New Hogan 
Reservoir and wells pumping ground water. The System consists of the purchase of an undivided one-third 
interest in Goodwin Dam, a diversion structure at Goodwin Dam, the Goodwin Tunnel, and the Upper Farmington 
Canal Improvements to Shirley, Hoods and Rock Creeks for conveyance, the Lower Farmington canal, Peters 
Pipeline and improvements to the existing District water treatment plant. The System contains both single-use 
facilities, to be used exclusively by the District, and facilities that may be used to provide New Melones water to 
the Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District. 

Merger with Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District 
The District is currently pursuing consolidation with its neighbor district to the south, the Central San Joaquin 
Water Conservation District. The districts came to terms on a merger agreement, and has filed a joint application 
with the San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). LAFCO is now preparing a Municipal 
Services Review, which is the first step in moving towards consolidation. No formal timeline is available with 
regards to approval by LAFCO or completion of the consolidation. 

Note 17 – Governing Board 

As of March 31, 2021, the seven members of the District’s Board of Directors were as follows: 
Director Division Term expires 

Richard Atkins 1 

Andrew Watkins 2 

Alvin Cortopassi 3 

Melvin Panizza 4 

Paul Sanguinetti 5 

Loralee McGaughey 6 

Thomas McGurk 7 

December 2024 

December 2022 

December 2024 

December 2024 

December 2022 

December 2022 

December 2022 
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2020

Consolidated Consolidated

Admin Agricultural Groundwater Treatment Plant Total Total

Assets

Current assets

  Cash and cash equivalents $1,747,510 $605,659 5,977,580   25,645,882  

  Water assessments receivable - 631,978 976,294  1,516,500  

  Interest receivable 12,880  2,708        35,596   129,811   

  Investments 11,773,851  $2,478,140.03

$2,208,630         
15,506         

2,240         
1,960,020 31,347,150   14,627  

  Other receivables 542,819  - (1,820) 855,850  914,610   

  Due to (from) other divisions (1,987,293)  (688,172) (2,626,784) 

$1,415,780        
328,810        
17,768         

15,135,139        
314,851         

5,302,248 -  -   

  Contract receivable, current 54,680  54,680   54,680  

  Inventory 138,655 138,655  178,237   

  Prepaid expenses 191,194  - 147,489 64,484 403,169  756,469   

Restricted assets

  Cash and cash equivalents 10,273  $5,000 5,000   588,100 608,373  10,177,162  

  Investments 852,363  $212,024 86,088  5,824,204  6,974,679   38,977  

- -  -  -  -  -   

  Developer fees receivable - 726,121 726,121  558,799   

 Total current and restricted assets 13,198,277  3,247,337   1,796,370   29,856,161  48,098,147   39,985,755  

Property, plant and equipment, net 46,576,374  294,359  6,176,067   31,064,692  84,111,491   85,387,849  

Other assets

  Water assessments receivable 28,000,451  28,000,451   27,944,146  

  Long term contract receivable 214,977  214,977  270,365   

  Debt refunding costs, net of amortization - -  37,237  

        Total assets 59,989,628  3,541,696   7,972,437   88,921,304  160,425,066  153,625,351  

Deferred outflows 1,434,821  56,525  286,564 1,777,910   1,971,424  

    Total assets and deferred outflows 61,424,449  3,598,221$     7,972,437   89,207,868  162,202,976$    155,596,775$   

Liabilities and net position

Current liabilities

  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,304,233  172    977,201 3,281,606   2,492,245  

  Compensated absences payable 261,737     420,172 681,910  549,766   

  Customer prepaid water tolls 29,801,147  29,801,147   28,994,975  

  Deferred revenue - -  -  -   

  Current portion of long-term debt 4,881,000  145,181  1,023,044  6,049,226   5,803,554  

  Interest payable - -  -   

 Total current liabilities 7,446,970  - 145,354 32,221,565  39,813,890   37,840,540  

Long-term debt, less current portion

  Certificates of participation -  -   

  State revolving fund loan 7,736,099  7,736,099   8,309,144  

  Other loan payable 21,704,000  2,272,797   1,485,000  25,461,797   30,937,978  

  Interest payable -  -   

  Accrued post-employment benefits 2,408,134  667,477  3,103,551  6,179,162   6,125,233  

  Net pension liability 6,191,401  6,191,401   5,852,107  

        Total liabilities 37,750,505  667,477  2,418,151   44,546,215  85,382,349   89,065,001  

Deferred inflows 715,447  6,080   32,637 754,164  1,175,060  

Net position

  Invested in capital assets 19,991,373  294,359  3,758,089   21,546,670  45,590,492   40,947,124  

  Restricted for urban contractors - -  -  5,400,405  5,400,405   8,302,201  

  Restricted for capital projects 828,024  -  -  1,121,702  1,949,727   2,180,940  

  Restricted for dry year reserves - 231,065 92,379  - 323,444 306,323   

  Unrestricted 2,139,099  2,399,240 1,703,818   16,560,239  22,802,396 13,620,127  

 Total net position 22,958,496  2,924,664   5,554,286   44,629,016  76,066,464   65,356,715  

   Total liabilities and net position 61,424,448$        3,598,221$     7,972,437$     $89,207,867.80 162,202,976$    155,596,775$   

Municipal Division

Stockton East Water District

Combining Statement of Net Position

March 31, 2021
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Board Meeting – 09/07/21 1

Draft

 THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF STOCKTON EAST WATER DISTRICT WAS HELD AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE 

6767 EAST MAIN STREET, STOCKTON, CA 

ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2021 AT 12:30 P.M. 

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL

President Watkins called the regular meeting to order at 12:30 p.m. and Director Cortopassi led

the Pledge of Allegiance.

Present at roll call at the District were Directors Atkins, Cortopassi, McGaughey, McGurk,

Sanguinetti and Watkins. Also present were Manager Moody, Assistant Manager Hopkins,

Finance Director Vega, Administrative Services Manager Carido, District Engineer Evensen,

Administrative Clerk Feliciano and Legal Counsel Zolezzi. Present at roll call via teleconference

was Director Panizza.

B. CONSENT CALENDAR (None)

C. PUBLIC COMMENT (None)

D. SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS AND AGENDA ITEMS

1. Minutes 08/31/21 Regular Meeting

A motion was moved and seconded to approve the August 31, 2021 Regular Board Meeting

Minutes, as presented.

Roll Call:

Ayes: Atkins, Cortopassi, McGaughey, McGurk, Panizza, Sanguinetti, Watkins

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

2. Warrants – California Public Employees’ Retirement System

A motion was moved and seconded to approve the September 7, 2021 Warrants, as presented.

Roll Call:

Ayes: Atkins, Cortopassi, McGaughey, McGurk, Panizza, Sanguinetti, Watkins

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: None

3. Forecast Informed Reservoir Operations (FIRO-MAR) Study

Manager Moody inquired with the Board about their interest in participating in the New

Hogan Reservoir Climate Resiliency and Multi-Benefit Flood Risk Reduction Feasibility

Study. President Watkins added Staff needs to create the documents to then be reviewed by

Legal Counsel but requires the Board to show intent to support the Study. The completed

Resolution will be brought back to the Board for approval to participate in the Study.

Director McGurk inquired what the District’s role is in the Study. President Watkins replied

the District was asked to be the lead agency on the three-year project. Manager Moody

commented the benefits are not flooding in the City but because the District holds the water

Agenda Item: D-2 
Date: 09/14/21
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rights, the Study needs the District’s participation for forecast informed reservoir operation 

and to move the water off of the river during flood control operations.  

 

Legal Counsel Zolezzi inquired if the Army Corps of Engineers are involved. Manager Moody 

replied yes, they will be. 

 

Director Atkins inquired on the amount of grant funds. Manager Moody replied the 

Department of Water Resources is providing $3.8 million and will be matched by the Army 

Corps of Engineers. Director Atkins inquired about the timeline. Manager Moody replied the 

Study was given a three-year timeline. 

 

Director McGurk inquired if staff is familiar with flood control work. President Watkins 

replied the context of the Study is new. Manager Moody commented there may be 

opportunities in the future for flood control grants to complete projects for flood control in the 

City of Stockton.  

 

President Watkins inquired if staff communicated with Merced on their Pilot Study. Legal 

Counsel added Mendocino also completed a Pilot Study. President Watkins inquired with staff 

about reaching out to those entities for information. Assistant Manager Hopkins replied yes. 

This item was for information only. 

 

4. Stockton East Water District – High Voltage Electrical System Repairs 

Manager Moody reported staff has studied the electrical grid on campus and have identified 

five electrical power poles in high service that failed. 

 

President Watkins inquired if the power poles service the wells. Assistant Manager Hopkins 

replied they service both the wells and High Service Pump Station. President Watkins added 

electrical service was added to high service about ten years ago.  

 

President Watkins inquired if the poles were going to be the same height or if the lines were 

being raised since there have been issues with copper being stolen and the equipment being 

tampered with. Assistant Manager Hopkins replied they will be the same height. Manager 

Moody commented staff will consider the options.  

 

Director McGaughey inquired if the electrical poles are checked regularly. Assistant Manager 

Hopkins replied they should be checked every 3-5 years but there were no records of the 

service being performed so staff scheduled it. 

 

President Watkins inquired if there was a hotspot or connection issue. Assistant Manager 

Hopkins replied the picture on page 18 illustrates the connections for the overhead wire which 

connects to the underground wire that were loose. This item was for information only. 

 

5. Stockton East Water District – Sodium Hypochlorite Project Alternative Project Delivery 

Methods, 09/01/21 

Manager Moody reported at the 30% design presentation with the consultant engineer, the 

option for design build was brought up in an effort to avoid the possibility of change orders 

when the project approached the construction phase. Manager Moody reported District 

Engineer Evensen collaborated with the consultant engineer to come up with 

recommendations of how to complete the project with the concerns in mind. District Engineer 

Evensen explained the design was nearing 90% and there would be no significant cost savings 
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to change the plan at this point. District Engineer Evensen reported the project should have 

begun with an alternative delivery method like Construction Management at Risk or design 

build. With the Construction Management at Risk process, the District would hire a consultant 

engineer and then the District and the consultant engineer would hire a contractor to complete 

the project with a guaranteed maximum price. With the Design Build method, a Design Build 

construction company would be hired, complete with engineering staff, and they would do the 

whole project. Manager Moody clarified changing the plan to a design build is not a good idea 

because the project is small and it is nearing the 90% design phase. This item was for 

information only. 

 

6. Dr. Joe Waidhofer Drinking Water Treatment Plant – Request for Proposals for Electrical 

Motor Control Center Replacement (MCC-2M System) Project 

Manager Moody reported the Electrical Motor Control Center Replacement (MCC-2M 

System) is a budgeted item planned for this year; staff has prepared a Request for Proposals 

(RFP) to acquire a contactor to provide a design proposal and a cost analysis to replace the 

MCC-2M. District Engineer Evensen commented it was installed in 1979 and is a critical 

component for the flocculation area and needs to be updated.  

 

Director McGurk inquired if this control center can be hacked. Manager Moody replied no, it 

is a switch board for major loads out of the flocculation basin. Director McGurk inquired if a 

computer controls the MCC-2M. District Engineer replied it is controlled by Staff. This item 

was for information only.  

 

7. United States Bureau of Reclamation – New Melones O&M Charges in a Drought Year 

Memo, 09/04/21 

Manager Moody commended Finance Director Vega on a phenomenal job putting together a 

Memorandum that is easy to understand the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) 

New Melones O&M Charges; it explains the difference between the water year and finance 

year. Manager Moody reported USBR’s finance year begins October 1st and the water year 

begins January 1st. Manager Moody added the District in 2015 took water from New Melones 

from October thru February and instead of paying $19.21 AF, the District paid $135.05 AF; 

O&M charges are incurred when water is taken from New Melones outside USBR’s fiscal 

year.  

 

President Watkins commented that the District needs to discontinue taking New Melones 

water after September 30th for irrigation purposes. Manager Moody replied he would like the 

Board to decide that practice going forward. President Watkins added those irrigators need to 

be told now that there will no longer be any New Melones water available after September 

30th because paying the O&M cost is unacceptable.  

 

President Watkins recommended we stop taking New Melones water after September 30th this 

fiscal year and the Board concurred. 

 

8. Stockton East Water District – Request for Bids for Tunnel Outlet Flume Project Discussion 

Manager Moody reported the Request for Bids for the Tunnel Outlet Flume Project has been 

published and bids are due September 23rd, 2021. Manager Moody reported this project has a 

very narrow window of eight weeks during the shutdown of the New Melones system, which 

construction could potentially be moved to next summer depending if the District receives 

New Melones water. Manager Moody added once the bids are submitted, the District can 
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assess the cost and bring it to the Board to decide when to complete the project. This item was 

for information only. 

 

E. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority Ad-Hoc Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

Meeting, 09/02/21 

President Watkins and Manager Moody attended the September 2, 2021 Eastern San Joaquin 

Groundwater Authority Ad-Hoc Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting. President 

Watkins reported the Request for Qualifications was finalized and will be presented for the 

Board to approve at the September 8, 2021 Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority Joint 

Exercise of Powers Authority Meeting. President Watkins reported there was an update on the 

TSS wells; Assistant Manager Hopkins has been made the point of contact for that matter. 

President Watkins added two WaterSMART grants were awarded. The next meeting is 

scheduled for October 6, 2021. 

 

F. REPORT OF GENERAL MANAGER 

1. Water Supply Report as of 08/30/21 

Manager Moody provided a handout of the Water Supply Report for information only that 

included storage, release, and production data collected from various sources as of midnight 

last night.   

 

There is 96,646 AF in storage at New Hogan Reservoir. Current releases are set at 160 cfs. 

Current release at Goodwin Dam to Stanislaus River are set at 352 cfs and release to all water 

users are set at 200 cfs. There are 10 irrigator(s) on New Hogan and 4 irrigator(s) on New 

Melones. There are currently no Out-of-District irrigator(s). The water treatment plant is 

currently processing 32 mgd. The City of Stockton is currently processing 24 mgd.  

 

2. Information Items: 

Manager Moody noted items: (None) 

 

3. Report on General Manager Activities 

a. United States Bureau of Reclamation – Funding Opportunity No. R21AS00289 – 

WaterSMART: Applied Sciences Water Smart Grant for Fiscal Year 2021 for Eastside 

Groundwater Use Measurement Project (ASG-20), 09/02/21 

Manager Moody reported the District was awarded two WaterSMART grants; one is to 

double our capacity to purchase meters in the amount of $75,000.00 and the other is for 

Stockton East Water District, Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District, North San 

Joaquin Water Conservation District and San Joaquin County to use ET satellite data 

tracking in the amount of $58,000.00. Manager Moody added there was an additional grant 

for $50,000.00 awarded for the Hosie Crossing; kudos to District staff for their hard work 

in applying for grants to benefit the District.  

 

President Watkins inquired if the Dal Porto’s were contacted about the project at Hosie 

Crossing. District Engineer Evensen replied yes. 

 

b. Stockton East Water District Activities Update 

Manager Moody reported a meeting with San Joaquin County to discuss Elkhorn Golf 

Club regarding switching Elkhorn Golf Club from groundwater to surface water. Manager 

Moody commented the District cannot provide the water because we do not have a 

connection but we can supplement the water to Woodbridge if they were willing to deliver 
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the water to Elkhorn Golf Club. President Watkins commented City of Stockton has the 

ability to deliver the water as well. Manager Moody replied that he would like to get City 

of Stockton involved as well. 

 

Manager Moody reported he is meeting with Finance Director Vega on Friday to finalize 

the numbers to submit to Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District. 

 

Director Cortopassi inquired when we will know if we have water for Central San Joaquin 

Water Conservation District. Manager Moody replied we will know by the end of March. 

 

G. DIRECTOR REPORTS (None) 

 

H. COMMUNICATIONS (None) 

 

I. AGENDA PLANNING/UPCOMING EVENTS  

1. Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority Joint Exercise of Powers Authority Meeting, 

9:00 a.m., 09/08/21 

 

2. San Joaquin County & Delta Water Quality Coalition Meeting, 9:00 a.m., 09/13/21 

  

J. REPORT OF THE COUNSEL 

1. Closed Session:   REAL PROPERTY – GOVERNMENT CODE  

SECTION 54956.9 – Property:  Water Rights 

Agency Negotiator:  Scot A. Moody  

Negotiating Parties:  USACE & SJFCA 

Under Negotiation:  Borrow Material 

 

2. Closed Session - Potential Litigation  

Government Code 54956.9 (c) – one case  

 

3. Closed Session – Personnel 

Government Code 54957 

 

President Watkins adjourned the meeting to closed session at 1:05 p.m. to discuss closed session 

agenda items. Administrative Clerk Feliciano was excused from the closed session meeting at 

1:20 p.m. The regular meeting reconvened at 1:28 p.m., with no reportable action. 

 

K. ADJOURNMENT 

President Watkins adjourned the meeting at 1:29 p.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Scot A. Moody 

Secretary of the Board 
 
 

 

arf 
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AGENDA 
Wednesday, September 8, 2021 

9:00 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. 
Teleconference Only 

Call-In Information Provided 

I. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance & Safety Announcement/Roll Call (*Please remember to keep your
phone line muted and unmute when announcing yourself for attendance or speaking)

II. SCHEDULED ITEMS – Presentation materials to be posted on ESJGroundwater.org and emailed prior
to the meeting.  Copies of presentation materials will be available at the meeting.

A. Action/Discussion Items:

1. Approval of Minutes of June 9, 2021 (Attached)

2. Review and Adopt Policy Statement to SWRCB Administrative Hearing Office to support the
American River Water Rights Permit 29657

3. SWRCB Comment to DWR on ESJ GSP (Attached)
B. Staff/DWR Report

1. Report on 9/2/21 TAC Meeting (Glenn Prasad)
2. RFQ for Basin Accounting Framework and Funding/Financing Alternatives

3. DWR Update and FSS status

4. DWR FIROMAR Pilot Project

III. Directors’ Comments and GSA Project Status Reports

1. Central Delta Water Agency (CDWA)
2. Central San Joaquin Water Conservation District (CSJWCD)
3. City of Stockton
4. City of Lodi
5. City of Manteca
6. City of Stockton
7. Eastside San Joaquin GSA
8. Linden County Water District (LCWD)
9. Lockeford Community Services District (LCSD)
10. North San Joaquin Water Conservation District (NSJWCD)
11. Oakdale Irrigation District (OID)
12. San Joaquin County #1
13. San Joaquin County #2 (Cal Water)
14. South Delta Water Agency (SDWA)
15. South San Joaquin Irrigation District (SSJID)

Board of Directors Meeting 
 

~ 

EASTERN SAN JOAQUIN 
GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

Agenda Item: E-1 
Date: 09/14/21
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16. Stockton East Water District (SEWD) 
17. Woodbridge Irrigation District (WID) 

 
IV. Secretary Report 

V. Public Comment (non-agendized items)  

VI. Future Agenda Items  

VII. Adjournment 

 
 

NOTICE: Coronavirus COVID-19 
 

See Attached Notice Regarding COVID 19, Closure of Board Chambers to the Public During the Eastern San 
Joaquin Groundwater Authority Board of Directors Meeting and Teleconference Information 

 
 

Next Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, December 8, 2021 

10:30 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 
                                                                                 Location TBD 

                   
Action may be taken on any item 

Agendas and Minutes may also be found at http://www.ESJGroundwater.org 
Note: If you need disability‐related modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting, please contact   

San Joaquin County Public Works Water Resources Staff at (209) 468‐3089 at least 48 hours prior to the start of the meeting. 

Important Notice Regarding COVID 19 and Closure of Board Chambers to the Public During Eastern 
San Joaquin Groundwater Authority Board of Directors Meetings 

On March 18, 2020, Governor Gavin Newson issued Executive Order N-29-20 recognizing that 
COVID 19 continues to spread throughout our community resulting in serious and ongoing economic 
harm.  Governor Newson has therefore waived certain requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act 
relating to public participation and attendance at public meetings. 

Based on guidance from the California Department of Public Health and the California Governor’s 
Officer, effective immediately and while social distancing measures are imposed, Board chambers will 
be closed to the public during the Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Board of Directors Meetings.   
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In order to minimize the spread of the COVID 19 virus, the following options are available to members 
of the public to listen to these meetings and provide comments to the Board of Directors before and 
during the meeting: 

1. You are strongly encouraged to listen to the Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority Board of 
Directors meetings by attending the teleconference:  

 

Microsoft Teams meeting 
Join on your computer or mobile app 

Click here to join the meeting 
Or call in (audio only) 

+1 209-645-4071  United States, Stockton 
Phone Conference ID: 239 455 833# 

Find a local number | Reset PIN 
Learn More | Meeting options 

 
 

*If you are connecting to Microsoft Teams for the first time, you will need to download the program to you PC.  You can 
also download the Microsoft Teams App to you Apple or Android device by visiting the App Stores.* 

       

Once connected, we request you kindly mute your phone. 

2.      If you wish to make a comment on a specific agenda item, please submit your comment via email by 
5:00 p.m. on the Tuesday prior to the meeting. Please submit your comment to the Clerk/Secretary 
of the Board at kmsith@sjgov.org.  Your comment will be shared with the Board members and 
placed into the record at the meeting.  Every effort will be made to read comments received during 
the meeting into the record but some comments may not be read due to time limitations.  Comments 
received after an agenda item will be made part of the record if received prior to the end of the 
meeting.    
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Weekly Water Report As of: 
Sept. 6, 2021 

As of: 
Sept. 13, 2021 

New Hogan (NHG) TOC 317,100 
Storage: 96,646 AF 
Net Storage Change: -2,512 AF 
Inflow: 22 CFS 
Release: 160 CFS 

New Melones (NML) Allocation 75,000 
Storage: 889,216 AF 
Net Storage change: -17,771 AF 
Inflow: 258 CFS 
Release: 1,660 CFS 

Source: CDEC Daily Reports 

Goodwin Diversion (GDW) 
Inflow (Tulloch Dam): 1,666 CFS 

Release to Stanislaus River (S-98): 352 CFS 
Release to OID (JT Main): 558 CFS 
Release to SSJID (SO Main): 246 CFS 
Release to SEWD:      200 CFS 
Total Release 1,356 CFS 

Source: Tri-Dam Operations Daily Report 

Farmington Dam (FRM) 
Diverted to SEWD: N/A CFS 
Diverted to CSJWCD: 0 CFS 

Source: USACE WCDS Hourly Report 

Surface Water Used 
Irrigators on New Hogan: 10 
Irrigators on New Melones: 4 
Out-Of-District Irrigators: 0 
DJWWTP Production: 32 MGD 

North Stockton: 0 MGD 
South Stockton: 6 MGD 
Cal Water: 26 MGD 

City of Stockton DWSP Production: 24 MGD 

District Ground Water Extraction 
74-01 0 GPM 
74-02 0 GPM 
North 0 GPM 
South 0 GPM 
Extraction Well # 1  0 GPM 
Total Well Water Extraction 0 GPM 

Note: All flow data reported here is preliminary and subject to revision. 

Agenda Item: F-1 
Date: 09/14/21
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